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The Mote
SN0667 2504               OS 25” first edition XVII.16             New Moat

Cadw considered this site but rejected it for the Register.

The house is ruined. The courtyard has been developed as a holiday home.

(This site was surveyed in 1996 neither as thoroughly nor as knowledgeably as it would have been done in later years)

The old mansion was abandoned by the Scourfield family in the late 18C and they went to live at Robeston Hall to be nearer the county’s social life.

Henry Scourfield’s daughter and heiress, Elizabeth Anne, married Col. Owen Philipps of Williamston.

Their son, Sir John Henry Scourfield, born 30.1.1808, married Augusta Lort Phillips 1.5.1845.  High Sheriff 1833.  MP Haverfordwest 1852-68 and Pembrokeshire 1868-76. A DL he assumed the Scourfield name by Royal Licence in 1862 on the death of a maternal aunt  (Miles says uncle). He wrote satirical and comic articles and verses and operas (!?)

JH and Augusta Scourfield had two sons, the younger of whom was killed, unmarried, in India in 1878.  Sir Owen Henry Philipps, 2nd Bart., married twice but had no issue.

Col. Owen and Elizabeth Anne Philipps also had a daughter who married David Arthur Saunders Davies of Pentre, MP for Carmarthenshire,  Their son Arthur Henry Saunders Davies married a Grismond Philipps of Cwmgwili. (see Table 88)

Col. Owen and Elizabeth Anne Philipps rebuilt the mansion at New Moat  It was completed about 1830 but he (a widower since 1828) died on 11.9.1830.  The new mansion was never (?) occupied by the family.  Their son and his wife Augusta were well settled at Williiamston.  The house was let in parts and deteriorated badly. Were the  gardens and grounds managed during this time?  No glasshouses are shown on the 1889 map.

Sir Owen Henry Philipps Scourfield, 2nd bart. died 5.2.1921.  Was his second wife still alive?

The estate was inherited by a Saunders Davies descendant.

Colonel (?) Scourfield Davies tried to sell New Moat in1925. The mansion was dismantled in 1926 (scandal of re-sale of lead etc).  Parcels of land have been sold at various dates since.  Precelly, his daughter, married Colin Murray and they live in Hampshire. She retains some of the preseli land.

The ruined house, the stable block and the sloping land to the south (“the lawn”) were purchased by Roger Allen, a diplomat and his wife and are now owned by their son. 

   The Scourfileld Cupboard

12th september 1998. at the Old Mill antiques rooms at Kidwelly stands the “Scourfield Cupboard” with a price tag of £90,000.

The oak sideboard was made for John Scourfield of New Moat  on the occasion of his marriage to Catrin Bowen of Llwch Meilir in this same county in 1578. It is of oak, elaborately carved, with a greyhound on one door and a rampant lion on the other.
The following description was sent to the RCAMW on 17th May 1997.  It was the result of a visit by GH and KBH on 13.2.96 and a second visit with the owner’s permission on 27.4.96 together with Sylvia Thomas Ferrand, David Ellis and John Savidge.

The Mote is the site of a nineteenth century mansion, now ruined, with lodge, carriage drive, coach/stable yard, informal garden, parkland views and a large walled garden.

The Scourfield family of New Moat (Mote, The Mote, The Moat) was, for several centuries, one of the largest landowners in Pembrokeshire.

(A summary of the family history outlined above appeared next)

South of the church, at the lower end of the village of New Moat, is the entrance.  There is a visibility splay, modest gate piers supporting a fairly modern wooden gate.  The lodge, on the right, has been modernised and is occupied by a young family as tenants.

The carriage drive immediately crosses a dam creating a fish pond to the left (506) with a smaller (fish catching?) extension.  A sluice controls the flow under the dam.  The pond is fed by streams from the north.  The motte (563, labelled New Moat in Gothic script with tumulus in brackets) has been used as a reservoir and a sluice controls the outflow.

(There is a circular, below-ground-level, reservoir to the north of the mansion ruins with metalwork and metal pipes. Date?  Was it fed from the motte or from the springs on the slope behind?)

The drive passes along the south side of the Pond Plantation and then curves leftwards through the Drive Plantation, past the stable yard on its left and mansion on its right.  There remains no trace of the drive which went direct to the mansion.  On the north side of the drive, immediately before the stable block, is a substantial stone wall pierced by a foot gateway and well made piers.

The Drive Plantation contains mature beech, oak, ash, sycamore and laurel. Ther are clumps of rhododendron identified (I.Stokes) as R. boddaertianum. This is a R. arboreum hybrid, probably developed from R. ponticum album in Holland in 1863. It has fairly long narrow leaves. The buds are pink developing into fine white trusses. 

Blue bells and large-leaved early snowdrops plentiful.

On the driveway some red-veined dock (Rumex sanguineus) which may be a herb garden escape.

The stable/coach-house and yard are on the left (north).  The north side buildings have been demolished except for the rear wall with its remains of hay feeders etc.  The south side, originally with a covered entrance, has been replaced with a low stone wall and a wide gateway leading into a grassy courtyard.  The west stable has been converted into a modern bungalow (the “summer cottage” of the owner) and the east one into a storage building.  Each has a semi-circular arched niche (for statues?).

The mansion site, soon after the stable block, but on the south, is entered at its NW corner past some existing and some ruined outbuildings against which are a fuschia and a Clematis montana rubra.  The outline of the mansion is quite clear.  Some walls exceed 3m in height and the vaulted cellars are visible.  Some mature trees close to the house include evergreen oak (to the east) and there are fairly recent plantings by the present owner who is making an informal garden of the area.  Some trees appear to be about 50 years old - a Turkey oak, a lime and some cherries.  There is a tree/shrub whose base has fallen and is rotting but with new vertical growth - thought to be Prunus padus, the bird cherry.

At the SE corner of the mansion site (under the “t” of “Mote” on the OS map) is a fir (Abies sp).  It is dying and has a rare lichen Usnea articulatum with sausage-shaped “stems”. (J.Savidge)

The field in front of the mansion (ie to the south) slopes south to a plantation.  It was, it is said, called “The lawn”  Some of the trees in this park survive.  There is a fine cedar of Lebanon (Cedrus libani) to the west and a group of three oak to the south west.  There is a shelter belt “frame” at each side.

Travelling eastwards along the drive:  to the north is a modern conifer plantation and a retaining wall. (No sign of deciduous trees or of the path system remain).  To the south is a low stone wall much damaged in parts by the trees (mostly sycamore) which grow behind and on it.  There has been quite a fine splay with dressed stone piers, leading into the walled garden area, also badly damaged by trees.  The owner is doing some repairs but is apparently loath to fell trees.

Entering the gate here one is faced by the roofless ruins of the garden buildings on either side of a wide entrance (covered on the OS map) into the garden.  These buildings contained the heaters - in the west building there are the remains of a square pit (c 2m x 2m) against the wall with a bricked cavity going under the wall.  Late 18C? (J. Savidge) - for a matched pair of glasshouses with in-wall heating flues.  The brick and stonework survive well but there is little trace of the actual glasshouses.

There are memories of glasshouse and orangery dismantling (Mr. Bushell, farmer) earlier this century to join the walled area into the field in which it stands, so it does seem that there was a second generation of glasshouses built after the OS surveys. Photographs of an orangery are said to exist. No doubt the heating system would have been different; boilers and water pipes superimposed on the remains of the hot air flues.

The garden walls are impressive but have fallen down (?) in places, mainly along the south side.  They are made of flat, dark grey, stones, slate-like in appearance. The walls are thick - perhaps a metre at the base, buttressed at intervals and capped with large slates,  Several arched doorways were long blocked up.  At the north end of the east wall, handmade nails can be seen.

The walled garden probably pre-dates the new mansion of 1834. It exceeds two acres with a gentle slope to the south allowing a terrace, east west, across the centre just discernable with four mature trees surviving (ash and sycamore) and some overgrown box.  Also found are traces of cobnut, gooseberry, pear, damson and plum. Lots of hawthorn and blackthorn.

Dryad’s saddle fungus in the base of a dead ash (JS).

The drive continues eastwards to meet the farm lane.

Of the elements listed in the RCAMW database:

la                            more of a farm field separated from mansion site by a modern fence

mot                        fairly well intact having been used at a reservoir

orch                       little evidence

pu                            ?

res      

        yes


shrub                      ?

wold                        yes

There are also:

cd

d

fp

gate

H                             ruin

hw

k                              part of wg

lo

p

Gazetteer entry?

Ruined mansion, modernised lodge and stable block; carriage drive, woodland and 20C plantings; walled garden; motte, fishponds, reservoir etc.

Western Telegraph report 28th March 2001 that R.T.P.Williams and/or Eaton Evans and Morris have deposited documents re Scourfield at the PRO.

Documents in file:

Text

OS 25” first edition maps (five copies inc two annotated)

Death of Col. David Gwyn Davies-Saunders  (The Times 29th September 1998)

Obituary of Col. David Davies-Saunders  (Daily Telegraph 29th January 1999)

Notes on family and estate

Letter from Charles Allen, the owner and photcopy of it

Pedigrees of the Scourfield family

Ancestry of Sir Owen Henry Philipps Scourfield

Early summary notes and picture

Visits notes later edited

Immaginary view of New Moat (unrecognised article)

Completed RCAMW form with handwritten text

Letter to Dr Briggs

Old black and white photographs (3)

Colour photographs (GH a very inadequate 6)

Cutting re historic cupboard (Western Telegraph undated)

Letter to The Times (Sept 2001) from Mr David A.P. Saunders-Davies

Photograph (enlargement copy).  DE obtained copy of photograph owned by the proprietor of the general store in Mynchlochog.
Pembrokeshire Life  April 2003   (Cutting)  Restoration of New Moat church – Robert Scourfield 
A Memorial Tablet to The Recorder of Brecon late 18c states that his (only?) daughter married Henry Scourfield of Moat in Pembrokeshire. (Photograph taken by GH 30th March 2004 accidentally destroyed when camera misbehaved)

Death of Brigadier Grismond Davies-Scourfield (The Times 26th November 2006)
Obituary of Brigadier Gris Davies-Scourfield (The Times 6th December 2006)

See Derek Williams  An Examination of the Scourfield Pedigree    The Journal of the Pembokeshire Historical Society  Number 6  1994-1995

See Derek Williams  The Scourfield Pedigree: Corrigendum   Number 7  1996-97
